
APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 1 of 4 

Equestrian Trails & Facilities & 
Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee 

Committees Appointed by the 
North Brevard Commission on Parks and Recreation (NBCPR) 

Minutes of the Combined Committee Meeting held May 17, 2004, at 6:00 p.m., 
at the Mims-Scottsmoor Library 

 
Equestrian Trails & Facilities 
Members Present 
Donna McCone, Chairman 
Sabrina Jeffers 
Kay Miller 
Mary Page, Vice Chairman 
Members Absent 
Cindy Carlton 
Connie Carswell 
Jennifer Hill–excused 
Dan Matrazzo–excused 
Winnie Woods–excused 
 
Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center 
Members Present 
Lee Bird 
Don Katrick 
Andy Root 
Lorene Shafer 
Carol Thompson 
Members Absent 
Katherine Bonnici 
Shelly Kipp 
 
Parks & Recreation Staff Present 
Charles S. Nelson, Parks and Recreation Director 
Marsha Cantrell, Parks Support Services Manager 
Terry A. Lane, North Area Parks Operations Interim Manager 
Judy Inman, Administrative Secretary 
              
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
It was determined that because the two committees had been combined with one chairman and vice 
chairman, the combined membership would be used to determine a quorum, as opposed to how many 
were present from each committee. 
 
Chairman Donna McCone called the meeting to order at 6:12 p.m. 
 
II.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES           
The minutes of March 15, 2004, were approved at the motion by Kay Miller, seconded by Lorene 
Shafer.  
AYE: Bird, Jeffers, Katrick, Jeffers, Miller, Page, Root, Shafer, Thompson 
NAY: None               Carried 9-0 
 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 2 of 4 

III.  STAFF REPORTS–None 
 
IV.  OLD BUSINESS 
A.  Mancini Property–Sites #6-7-8 
Mr. Nelson reported he did a review of the Mancini site and reported that while it has the acreage in total, 
there is sufficient land that is protected and cannot be developed, so all could not be accomplished on that 
site.  That is not to say the site can’t serve for the trails/equestrian piece.  Another location might need to 
be found for the Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center and library.  Mr. Nelson indicated two things need 
to happen.  One is to continue to work with the Mancinis.  Money would need to be spent for a wetlands 
determination to make a more accurate determination of land that could be used.  That study would be 
added to the survey the Mancinis had done. Mr. Nelson stated staff was reluctant to do the study because 
the money would not come back.  It would make a good trail head.  The second action would be for the 
committees to separate again as it moves away from the joint concept and look for smaller sites. 
 
Sabrina Jeffers inquired if, even though there is the desire to incorporate the library, there would be 
enough land without the library.  Mr. Nelson stated he doesn’t  believe there is enough land to accomplish 
that.  The original acreage looked at was 20+ acres for equestrian, 20 acres for the community center and 
fields, and 5 acres for the library, plus open space for a minimum of 50, up to 80 acres.  If separated, the 
30-40 acre range would be looked at for the community center and library and 20+ acres for equestrian. 
 
Chairman McCone noted it appears site #1 on the map from the previous meeting is large enough and 
adjacent to the trail head, however the question is wetlands.  Mr. Nelson noted access is also an issue.  
Chairman McCone stated, Blounts Ridge is paved to corner of site #1 and the dirt road is accessible but 
not County maintained.  Mr. Nelson reported there are significant wetlands on #1. 
 
Lee Bird inquired about the 20 acre site NE of the Mancini property that was discussed at the last 
meeting.  Mr. Nelson stated that from a design perspective, it doesn’t assist.  It could be a free-standing 
site.  Mr. Nelson also indicated reluctance because it is on a residential street.   
 
Andy Root reported there is a contract on Site #5 that goes around the back side of Scottsmoor, and the 
developer maybe interested.  Andy thinks it would be a good site for the library and would be willing to 
talk to him.  Mr. Nelson stated that would be good if the projects are separated, however he has concerns 
about utilities.  Lee Bird stated that if the committee separates, there would be nothing to keep the 
committee from looking for something close to Parrish Park where the water system is already in place. 
 
Ms. Shafer announced the North Brevard Library has been renamed as the Titusville Library so that name 
is available.  She stated she would rather see it half way between Mims and Scottsmoor.  Ms. Sunny 
Creel, who is with Friends of the Library, indicated the desire for it to be more centrally located between 
Mims and Scottsmoor.  Mr. Nelson reviewed the target area on the map which is central between the 
County line and SR 46.   
 
Mr. Bird stated it looks like committee will need to separate.  Chairman McCone questioned if all the 
information was available to separate the things.  Ms. Shafer stated she understands there is a window of 
about five years for the library which will not come from Referendum funds.  Chairman McCone stated 
her reluctance to say this is not feasible and give this up, noting it isn’t known how much of the 90-acre 
Mancini property is wetlands.  Only 45 acres are needed.  Mr. Nelson noted the area is divided by 
wetlands and stated money can be expended to find out the true nature of the land.   
 
Andy Root stated that area is fine for equestrian, but Route 1 would be more central.  Chairman McCone 
stated the true center is much further south.  Mr. Nelson showed the chairman the soils map which he 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 3 of 4 

discussed.  Chairman McCone stated she would like to see the U.S. Corps of Engineer’s overlay map for 
their drainage as well.  Mr. Nelson estimated the study would cost less than $10,000. In response to an 
inquiry from Gigi Henkel, Mr. Nelson indicated there had been no specific discussion with the Mancinis 
about splitting the cost. 
 
Carol Thompson asked if there are any other large parcels, which Mr. Nelson answered saying, not in the 
size being discussed and with one owner.   
 
Lee Bird stated he would vote against site #1 because it is at the NW end of the target area and doesn’t 
look easily accessible from the population center for a community center.  Andy Root stated that is why 
site #5 would be a good.  Chairman McCone again noted Blounts Ridge is paved all the way to site #1.  
Mr. Nelson stated it would be a long way around to get to #1 for people north of Aurantia, and noted the 
community center site would be better closer to the population.   
 
In response to an observation from Mr. Bird, Mr. Nelson agreed since only larger parcels were sought, it 
might be possible to find a more desirable 30-40 acre site. Mary Page noted that eventually it will be in 
the middle as the west area is developed.  The chairman cautioned about shortchanging the future by not 
looking 20 years down the road.  Discussion ensued about future development west of I-95.  Mr. Bird 
stated he doesn’t see building a community center in two years based on an estimate of where the 
population center may be in 20 years.  Mr. Root stated that much of the area west of I-95 cannot be 
developed. 
 
Sabrina Jeffers stated she thinks it is premature to separate the committee. 
              
Motion by Lee Bird, seconded by Lorene Shafer, to get with the owner’s representative about 
sharing the cost of the wetlands study for sites #6-7-8 and the committee’ share to be no higher than 
$5000 of the combined committees’ money.  
 
Sabrina Jeffers inquired if this is something the owners will need in the future.  Blaise Mancini indicated 
they have a topo and boundary survey.  They would want to know the estimate of the cost. 
 
Chairman McCone asked if the committee has the authority to vote on spending any of the money.  Mr. 
Nelson stated it is within the realm of due diligence and as Department Director, he has the ability to do 
that.  However, he wouldn’t without good cause.   
 
Chairman McCone indicated she isn’t concerned that the area would not be contiguous because different 
structures are planned.  Mary Page thought it might be nice to have a natural buffer.  Mr. Nelson noted it 
would be a problem to go back out on the road to get from one part of the park to another.  The maps of 
the soil types were passed around.  Types of soil and plant life were discussed.  Mr. Nelson noted 
mitigation could be required.  Chairman McCone stated she is very confident a huge portion of the budget 
is not being risked.  Ms. Shafer stated she thinks it is very feasible and not reckless to approach the 
owners for the study. 
 
AYE: Bird, Jeffers, Katrick, Jeffers, Miller, Page, Root, Shafer, Thompson 
NAY: None               Carried 9-0 
 
The possibility of checking out other sites outside of the target area was discussed. 
 
Mr. Mancini related it took three months for St. Johns River Water Management District to come for a 
study on a one-acre lot eight months ago, but they don’t charge.  Mr. Nelson noted that if they are that  



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 
 
 
 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 5 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 6 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 7 of 4 

MANCINI PROPERTY 
Flood Zone  

 
 
 

 
 
 

Brevard County Parks & Recreation  
 
 

May 6, 2003 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 8 of 4 

 
 
 

MANCINI PROPERTY 
Soils Map  

 
 
 

 
 
 

Brevard County Parks & Recreation  
 
 

May 6, 2003 
 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 9 of 4 

 
 
 
 

MANCINI PROPERTY 
Soils Map  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Brevard County Parks & Recreation  
 
 

May 6, 2003 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 10 of 4 

 

MANCINI PROPERTY 
Wetlands Map  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Brevard County Parks & Recreation  
 
 

May 6, 2003 
 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee               Page 11 of 4 

 
 
 

backed up, others probably are too.  He reported BRPH is the engineering firm selected for this project, 
and he will talk with them on the procedure and cost.   
 
B.  Committee Attendance           
Motion by Lee Bird, seconded by Lorene Shafer, that if a member of either committee has three 
unexcused absences that they be replaced. 
AYE: Bird, Jeffers, Katrick, Jeffers, Miller, Page, Shafer, Thompson 
NAY: None               Carried 8-0 
 
V.  NEW BUSINESS 
Lee Bird invited the committee to the Scottsmoor community second annual 4th of July picnic at Parrish 
Park-Scottsmoor at 3 p.m. 
 
Sabrina Jeffers stated her concern that more community members are not involved. 
 
VI. PUBLIC INPUT 
Blaise Mancini asked if he can contact committee members.  Chairman McCone stated he can, but 
committee members can’t talk with each other about any issue that might be voted on.  Mr. Nelson 
clarified that Mr. Mancini can talk with committee members individually but can’t tell one what another 
said.   
 
Chairman McCone asked those present in the audience to introduce themselves and state their interest. 
• Sunny Creel, Friends of the Library, is interested in all of it as she has lived in the community some 30 

odd years. 
• John and June Dumphy are interested in the equestrian project and want to be on the mailing list.  
• Fred Kusterer lives at the railroad tracks at McCullough Road. 
• George Miller has a small boarding business in Holder Park.   
• Nicolas Rinaldi own a strip of property along the railroad tracks at Williams Way. 
• Blaise Mancini’s father, Don, owns the property. 
 
VII.  NEXT MEETING DATE 
Mr. Nelson stated that once he has had discussion with the engineer and the Mancinis, he will send a 
letter to the committee with the status.   
 
The next meeting was tentatively set for July 19, at 6:00 p.m., at the Mims-Scottsmoor Library.  
 
VIII.  ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m. at the motion by Lee Bird, seconded by Mary Page. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Donna McCone, Chairman 
 
jbi 
 



APPROVED 07/19/04–Equestrian Trails & Facilities & Mims-Scottsmoor Community Center Referendum Committee
 Page 12 of 4 

 
 


